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Canola and Rapeseed Research, Pro-

motion, and Consumer Information 

Act, codified at 7 U.S.C. 7448(e), has a 

maximum of $7,000 for each day the 

violation occurs. 

(xlvi) Civil penalty for violation of an 

order or regulation issued under the 

National Kiwifruit Research, Pro-

motion, and Consumer Information 

Act, codified at 7 U.S.C. 7468(c)(1), has 

a minimum of $700 and a maximum of 

$7,000 for each violation. 

(xlvii) Civil penalty for failure to 

obey a cease and desist order under the 

National Kiwifruit Research, Pro-

motion, and Consumer Information 

Act, codified at 7 U.S.C. 7468(e), has a 

maximum of $700 for each day the vio-

lation occurs. 

(xlviii) Civil penalty for a violation 

of an order or regulation under the 

Popcorn Promotion, Research, and 

Consumer Information Act, codified at 

7 U.S.C. 7487(a), has a maximum of 

$1,200 for each violation. 

(xlix) Civil penalty for certain viola-

tions under the Egg Products Inspec-

tion Act, codified at 21 U.S.C. 

1041(c)(1)(A), has a maximum of $7,500 

for each violation. 

(l) Civil penalty for violation of an 

order or regulation issued under the 

Hass Avocado Promotion, Research, 

and Information Act of 2000, codified at 

7 U.S.C. 7807(c)(1)(A)(i), has a minimum 

of $1,100 and a maximum of $11,000 for 

each violation. 

(li) Civil penalty for failure to obey a 

cease and desist order under the Hass 

Avocado Promotion, Research, and In-

formation Act of 2000, codified at 7 

U.S.C. 7807(e)(1), has a maximum of 

$11,000 for each offense. 

(lii) Civil penalty for violation of cer-

tain provisions of the Livestock Man-

datory Reporting Act of 1999, codified a 

7 U.S.C. 1636b(a)(1), has a maximum of 

$11,000 for each violation. 

(liii) Civil penalty for failure to obey 

a cease and desist order under the Live-

stock Mandatory Reporting Act of 1999, 

codified a 7 U.S.C. 1636b(g)(3), has a 

maximum of $11,000 for each violation. 

(liv) Civil penalty for failure to obey 

an order of the Secretary issued pursu-

ant to the Dairy Product Mandatory 

Reporting program, codified at 7 U.S.C. 

1637b(c)(4)(D)(iii), has a maximum of 

$11,000 for each offense. 

(lv) Civil penalty for a willful viola-

tion of the Country of Origin Labeling 

program by a retailer or person en-

gaged in the business of supplying a 

covered commodity to a retailer, codi-

fied at 7 U.S.C. 1638b(b)(2), has a max-

imum of $1,000 for each violation. 

(lvi) Civil penalty for violations of 

the Dairy Research Program, codified 

at 7 U.S.C. 4535 & 4510(b), has a max-

imum of $1,100 for each violation. 

(2) Animal and Plant Health Inspection 
Service—(i) Civil penalty for a violation 

of the imported seed provisions of the 

Federal Seed Act, codified at 7 U.S.C. 

1596(b), has a minimum of $37.50 and a 

maximum of $750. 

(ii) Civil penalty for a violation of 

the Animal Welfare Act, codified at 7 

U.S.C. 2149(b), has a maximum of 

$10,000, and knowing failure to obey a 

cease and desist order has a civil pen-

alty of $1,650. 

(iii) Civil penalty for any person that 

causes harm to, or interferes with, an 

animal used for the purposes of official 

inspection by the Department, codified 

at 7 U.S.C. 2279e(a), has a maximum of 

$11,000. 

(iv) Civil penalty for a violation of 

the Swine Health Protection Act, codi-

fied at 7 U.S.C. 3805(a), has a maximum 

of $11,000. 

(v) Civil penalty for any person that 

violates the Plant Protection Act 

(PPA), or that forges, counterfeits, or, 

without authority from the Secretary, 

uses, alters, defaces, or destroys any 

certificate, permit, or other document 

provided for in the PPA, codified a 7 

U.S.C. 7734(b)(1), has a maximum of the 

greater of: $60,000 in the case of any in-

dividual (except that the civil penalty 

may not exceed $1,100 in the case of an 

initial violation of the PPA by an indi-

vidual moving regulated articles not 

for monetary gain), $300,000 in the case 

of any other person for each violation, 

$500,000 for all violations adjudicated in 

a single proceeding if the violations do 

not include a willful violation, and 

$1,000,000 for all violations adjudicated 

in a single proceeding if the violations 

include a willful violation; or twice the 

gross gain or gross loss for any viola-

tion, forgery, counterfeiting, unauthor-

ized use, defacing, or destruction of a 

certificate, permit, or other document 

provided for in the PPA that results in 
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the person deriving pecuniary gain or 

causing pecuniary loss to another. 

(vi) Civil penalty for any person [ex-

cept as provided in 7 U.S.C. 8309(d)] 

that violates the Animal Health Pro-

tection Act (AHPA), or that forges, 

counterfeits, or, without authority 

from the Secretary, uses, alters, de-

faces, or destroys any certificate, per-

mit, or other document provided under 

the AHPA, codified at 7 U.S.C. 

8313(b)(1), has a maximum of the great-

er of: $60,000 in the case of any indi-

vidual, except that the civil penalty 

may not exceed $1,100 in the case of an 

initial violation of the AHPA by an in-

dividual moving regulated articles not 

for monetary gain, $300,000 in the case 

of any other person for each violation, 

$500,000 for all violations adjudicated in 

a single proceeding if the violations do 

not include a willful violation, and 

$1,000,000 for all violations adjudicated 

in a single proceeding if the violations 

include a willful violation; or twice the 

gross gain or gross loss for any viola-

tion, forgery, counterfeiting, unauthor-

ized use, defacing, or destruction of a 

certificate, permit, or other document 

provided under the AHPA that results 

in the person’s deriving pecuniary gain 

or causing pecuniary loss to another 

person. 

(vii) Civil penalty for any person that 

violates certain regulations under the 

Agricultural Bioterrorism Protection 

Act of 2002 regarding transfers of listed 

agents and toxins or possession and use 

of listed agents and toxins, codified at 

7 U.S.C. 8401(i)(1), has a maximum of 

$300,000 in the case of an individual and 

$600,000 in the case of any other person. 

(viii) Civil penalty for violation of 

the Horse Protection Act, codified at 15 

U.S.C. 1825(b)(1), has a maximum of 

$2,200. 

(ix) Civil penalty for failure to obey 

Horse Protection Act disqualification, 

codified at 15 U.S.C. 1825(c), has a max-

imum of $4,300. 

(x) Civil penalty for knowingly vio-

lating, or, if in the business as an im-

porter or exporter, violating, with re-

spect to terrestrial plants, any provi-

sion of the Endangered Species Act of 

1973, any permit or certificate issued 

thereunder, or any regulation issued 

pursuant to section 9(a)(1)(A) through 

(F), (a)(2)(A) through (D), (c), (d) (other 

than regulations relating to record-

keeping or filing reports), (f), or (g) of 

the Endangered Species Act of 1973 (16 

U.S.C. 1538(a)(1)(A) through (F), 

(a)(2)(A) through (D), (c), (d), (f), and 

(g)), as set forth at 16 U.S.C. 1540(a), 

has a maximum of $37,500. 

(xi) Civil penalty for knowingly vio-

lating, or, if in the business as an im-

porter or exporter, violating, with re-

spect to terrestrial plants, any other 

regulation under the Endangered Spe-

cies Act of 1973, as set forth at 16 U.S.C. 

1540(a), has a maximum of $18,200. 

(xii) Civil penalty for violation, with 

respect to terrestrial plants, of the En-

dangered Species Act of 1973, or any 

regulation, permit, or certificate 

issued thereunder, as set forth at 16 

U.S.C. 1540(a), has a maximum of $750. 

(xiii) Civil penalty for knowingly and 

willfully violating 49 U.S.C. 80502 with 

respect to the transportation of ani-

mals by any rail carrier, express car-

rier, or common carrier (except by air 

or water), a receiver, trustee, or lessee 

of one of those carriers, or an owner or 

master of a vessel, codified at 49 U.S.C. 

80502(d), has a minimum of $110 and a 

maximum of $650. 

(3) Food and Nutrition Service—(i) 

Civil penalty for violating a provision 

of the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008 

(Act), or a regulation under the Act, by 

a retail food store or wholesale food 

concern, codified at 7 U.S.C. 2021(a) and 

(c), has a maximum of $100,000 for each 

violation. 

(ii) Civil penalty for trafficking in 

food coupons, codified at 7 U.S.C. 

2021(b)(3)(B), has a maximum of $32,000 

for each violation, except that the 

maximum penalty for violations occur-

ring during a single investigation is 

$59,000. 

(iii) Civil penalty for the sale of fire-

arms, ammunitions, explosives, or con-

trolled substances for coupons, codified 

at 7 U.S.C. 2021(b)(3)(C), has a max-

imum of $32,000 for each violation, ex-

cept that the maximum penalty for 

violations occurring during a single in-

vestigation is $59,000. 

(iv) Civil penalty for any entity that 

submits a bid to supply infant formula 

to carry out the Special Supplemental 

Nutrition Program for Women, Infants 

and Children and discloses the amount 

of the bid, rebate or discount practices 
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